

Citizens Bond Oversight Committee

Meeting Minutes

January 28, 2015, 5:00 p.m., SBCCD Board Room

Members Present – Alaa El Awar, Albert Garcia, Frank Reyes, Ken Coate, Linda Roberts-Ross, Sam Irwin, Valerie Lichtman

Members Absent - Bob Erikson

District Staff Present - Jose Torres, Interim Vice Chancellor, Business & Fiscal Services

Kitchell/BRj Staff Present - George Johnson, Bond Program Manager

Welcome/Introductions

Ken Coate opened the meeting at 5:08 pm. Self introductions were made.

Approval of Minutes

Valerie Lichtman moved, and Sam Irwin seconded, to approve the minutes from December 11, 2014. **The minutes were approved** by the following vote:

Ayes:	Alaa El Awar, Albert Garcia, Frank Reyes, Ken Coate, Linda Roberts-Ross, Sam Irwin, Valerie Lichtman
Noes:	None
Absent:	Bob Erikson
Abstentions:	None

Public Comment

There was no public comment.

Review Board Items & Site Visits

There were no comments on specific board items and no site visits took place since the last meeting of the CBOC. Ken asked George Johnson if it was true that the SBVC Gym project was behind schedule. George confirmed that the project is about 60 days behind schedule due to problems with saturated soil. He was hopeful that some of the delay might be recovered since there were still 18 months of construction left.

CBOC Annual Report

The committee discussed the 2014 annual report draft. Linda Roberts-Ross thought it well written. She commented that it captured the controversy surrounding the Board of Trustee's adoption of a community benefits agreement in December, as well as the committee members' feeling of being marginalized during the process. Other members voiced concern about the December 11 adoption, including:

• Why was it that Ken, who was prepared to speak on behalf of the CBOC, and had requested to be placed on the agenda, was not part of the agenda, and was not recognized by the Board.

- Alaa felt there was a lot of confusion and pressure from members of the public at that meeting and expressed his desire for the Board to revisit the issue, this time giving stakeholders (such as students and the CBOC) a chance to be heard.
- Ken voiced his concern that the agreement being voted on seemed to be being amended as it was being approved, without the benefit of the amendments being reviewed by the Board.

The committee decided that Sam, who is presenting the report at the February 19, 2015 Board of Trustees meeting, would read aloud from the report, including the statement on compliance and the following paragraphs from the report.

This year the committee faced some challenging issues regarding the fiscal prudence of the Board of Trustees and the Chancellor. Actions with a direct effect on expenditures and pure construction value of the bond dollars being spent were not presented to the Committee, nor was the input of the committee solicited by either the Chancellor or the Board.

The Board of Trustees chose to develop a surety bonding assistance program that will use an outside consultant, at a considerable cost, to assist small local minority and women-owned businesses with their bonding programs so that they compete on projects with the district. The presumption was that the potential additional bidders would create enough additional competition to overcome the cost of the program. No real data was provided to support this presumption, and the committee did not provide a vote of support. In addition, the program depends on the district providing forms of collateral on bonds written where the beneficiary (obligee) is the district itself. It is hard to explain the purpose of this circular type of indemnity arrangement, and it is certainly perplexing at best.

We will need to monitor the expenses and benefits of this program closely to see if it meets the standards of reducing costs whenever possible. We are concerned that evidence of cost savings was not of primary concern to the Board, nor was the input of the Oversight Committee even solicited.

More notable was the Board of Trustees passing a "Community Benefits Agreement" this December. This agreement is better known as a "Project Labor Agreement", and these agreements give substantial advantages to union contractors vs. non-union contractors. The Bond Oversight Committee spent a significant amount of time and effort to determine if there was cost savings, as required under Section 5 of California Educational Code 15278. We gathered information from local businesses, trade groups, staff and other interested parties, and determined there was no clear cost savings, and a potentially significant (10-20%) cost increase with no benefit to the community. The committee made every attempt to communicate this decision to the Board, but we were not allowed to make our findings to the Board prior to the Board of Trustees voting to approve this agreement.

Despite consistent opposing arguments from student organizations and local stakeholders, as well as not taking the time to even hear the Citizens Bond Oversight Committee, regardless of our clear desire to present our well-researched findings and conclusion, the Community Benefits Agreement was approved. This rush to make a decision prior to hearing our report we find irresponsible, and we wish to make these actions known to the public.

Given that the report is written to the public and Sam will be addressing the Board of Trustees directly, he advised he would adapt the wording accordingly. Members of the committee were satisfied with this. Alaa commented that he would also like a few minutes to speak as a student representative and member of the CBOC.

Committee members then talked about the statement of compliance and developed the following:

"To the best of its ability, the Citizens Bond Oversight Committee believes that the San Bernardino Community College District is in compliance with the requirements of Article XIIIA, Section 1(b)(3) of the California Constitution."

At this point in the meeting, **Sam made a motion**, which was seconded by Valerie, to approve:

- 1) The statement of compliance,
- 2) The annual report as written, with the addition of the statement of compliance, and
- 3) The specific portion of the report to be verbally communicated to the Board of Trustees on February 19.

The motion was approved by the following vote:

Ayes:	Alaa El Awar, Albert Garcia, Frank Reyes, Ken Coate, Linda Roberts-Ross,
	Sam Irwin, Valerie Lichtman
Noes:	None
Absent:	Bob Erikson
Abstentions:	None

Measure M Project Update

George spoke for a few minutes regarding Measure M projects. He advised that the new Crafton Center, Science Building and OE2 building are all expected to come online at CHC within two or three months. He also shared that the Southern California Chapter of the Construction Management Association of America has recognized the SBVC Auditorium project for outstanding achievement in the building/renovation less than \$10 million category. He will forward information about the award to committee members.

Form 700

Members of the committee were individually addressed by Kelly Goodrich prior to the meeting. No further discussion was necessary for this item.

Future Meetings & Adjournment

Frank asked that the following item be added to the next agenda: What liability does the CBOC have? The next meeting of the CBOC was scheduled for Wednesday, March 25. 2015 at 5:00 p.m. The CBOC adjourned at 6:35 p.m.